CITY OF TUCUMCARI
MINUTES
April 22, 2010

The Tucumcari City Commission met for their RegWeting on Thursday, April 22,
2010, at 6:00 p.m. in the City Commission Chamb&igmbers present constituting a
quorum were Antonio Apodaca, Amiel Curnutt, Rokkennpkin, Jimmy Sandoval, and
Jim Witcher.

City staff members present were Bobbye Rose, Capader; Mike Cherry, Assistant
City Manager; Christine Dougherty, City Clerk; DoBgwers, Planning and Zoning
Administrator; Misty Vick, Grant Writer; Dennis Dgg, Contract Internal Control
Specialist; Marty Garcia, Finance Director; Vickr&hd, Deputy Finance Director; and
Jason Braziel, Chief of Police.

Mr. John Hinze, Pastor of the First Baptist Chutitturch, gave the invocation and
Commissioner Sandoval led the group in the Pledddlegiance.

Roll Call
Mayor Witcher asked for Roll Call:

Sandoval Curnutt Witcher Lumpkin Apodaca
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Consider ation of Changes or Deletionsto Agenda

Mayor Witcher asked if there were any suggested@bsor deletions to the agenda.
Mr. Apodaca indicated that item X, C should be reetband put on the next agenda so
that everyone will have time to review the ordinanc

Mr. Cherry indicated that Ms. Rose is en route fameeting with the Governor in
Santa Fe and will arrive shortly. He asked thatreport be held until the end of the
meeting to ensure her enough time to arrive.

Items from Commissioners

Commissioner Lumpkin thanked all those in attendaonc coming to the meeting. He
also noted that there were many youth in the agdi@amd he was pleased to see so many
of them.

Mayor Pro Tem Apodaca had no comments.

Commissioner Sandoval had no comments.

Commissioner Curnutt had no comments.

Mayor Witcher had no comments.



Approval of Minutes

Commissioner Lumpkin made a motion to approve tirutas of the April 8, 2010
Regular Commission Meeting. Commissioner Curretbaded the motion. Roll Call:

Curnutt Witcher Lumpkin Apodaca Sandoval
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Approval of Vouchers

Commissioner Lumpkin made a motion to approve theckiers for payment.
Commissioner Curnutt seconded the motion. Roll:Cal

Witcher Lumpkin Apodaca Sandoval Curnutt
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Items From Citizens

Mayor Witcher asked if there were any citizens wigho address the Commission.
Being none, the meeting continued.

Proclamations, Memorials, or Petitions

Mayor Witcher read a proclamation in appreciatibthe Silver Star Families of
America and in honor of their commitment to our wdad, ill injured and dying Armed
Forces members and veterans. The proclamatioardecMay ¥ as the permanent and
official Silver Star Service Banner Day.

Mayor Witcher read a proclamation in conjunctionhathe New Mexico Route 66
Association declaring July 23-25 Route 66 Days.

Mayor Witcher read a proclamation declaring the thaf May 2010 as Parents Who
Host, Lose the Most: Don’'t Be a Party to TeenageKimg.

Bids and Contracts

Mr. Cherry presented the Fire Protection Fund istion annual grant application. Mr.
Cherry explained that this application has to Hastted in order to participate in the
grant program and that the grant provides all frerating funds for the department.

Commissioner Lumpkin made a motion to approve ihe Frotection Fund Distribution
and Commissioner Curnutt seconded the motion. Gallt

Lumpkin Apodaca Sandoval Curnutt Witcher
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Misty Vick presented contract Amendment Number € the Contract with Wilson
and Company for the Second Street water and sinpedbvements. Ms. Vick explained



that the amendment consists of the full time casion costs for the Department of
Transportation for the duration of the project.

Commissioner Lumpkin made a motion to approve Amegrdt number three for the
contract with Wilson and Company for the Seconeé&twater and street improvements.
Commissioner Curnutt seconded the motion. Roll:Cal

Apodaca Sandoval Curnutt Witcher Lumpkin
Yes No Yes Yes Yes

Misty Vick then presented the CDBG extension requdss. Vick explained that this
extension is required in order to complete thel fah@seout of the paperwork.

Commissioner Lumpkin made a motion to approve tb8G Planning Grant Extension
Request and Commissioner Curnutt seconded the moRoll Call:

Sandoval Curnutt Witcher Lumpkin Apodaca
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Old Business

Mr. Cherry presented the options for rectifying kaek of street lighting on the west end
of Route 66 Boulevard in the City. Mr. Cherry exipkd that for the last 18 months the
street lights on the west end of the boulevard mmideen working because the wiring is
very old technology. Mr. Cherry stated that in kiog with Xcel Energy, staff has three
options to choose from in order to get lightinglan in the area.

The first option would be to replace all the wiritogthe light poles and use the same light
heads that are currently on the poles. The cartgtrucost for this project would be
approximately $100,000 and the annual energy citidbevapproximately $20,000.

Option number two would include replacing the wgrisnd installing new low voltage
light heads. Xcel energy would provide the nevitligeads in this option. The
construction cost would again be approximately $200 to re-wire the light poles.
However, the low voltage light heads will decrets®eannual energy cost to
approximately $15,000.

The third option is to abandon 70 of the existights which are in areas where no
businesses are located and keep 36 light polegarabon. The 36 lights would include
the Convention Center and three lights at eachiegibusiness on the boulevard. This
option would involve no construction costs anddahaual energy cost will be
approximately $5200.

Mr. Apodaca asked what Xcel Energy recommends. (Merry stated that Xcel Energy
recommends option three. Mr. Witcher offered thation three would include lights at
the Paradise, Redwood Lodge, and the Conventiote€eNlr. Apodaca asked if the
business owners on the west end had been consedjartling these options. Mr.
Apodaca stated that the business owners needltodiedortable with the option chosen.
Mr. Cherry stated that he had not spoken to the @ business owners and that his



goal was simply to quickly get some lights backsorthe west end of the boulevard is no
longer dark.

Mr. Cherry explained that on the map provided ®@ommissioners, the yellow coded
lights are the lights that option three proposekietep and the blue lights are those that
are proposed to be abandoned. Mr. Apodaca askedh&lold truck stop that is no
longer open would still have lights. Mr. Cherrypkained that the truck stops proximity
to the highway interchange is the reason the hgiwvould be maintained there. Mr.
Witcher added that he feels lights are needed thedeaw tourists off the interstate and
that they will see the lights further down the r@eaudl continue into town.

Mr. Lumpkin stated that the earlier concern wasppeovould get off the interstate on the
west Route 66 exit and the darkness would disceuttagm and they would turn around
and bypass Tucumcari. Mr. Lumpkin stated thaga gsias discussed that would direct
motorists into town. Mr. Lumpkin expressed concaiout the lack of lighting at the
present time and also about the $100,000 pricattaghed to lighting options one and
two. Mr. Lumpkin was also concerned about the l@ghlrgy costs of options one and
two. Mr. Lumpkin stated that option three will prde lighting to all businesses and
there could be a sign installed. Mr. Lumpkin adtieat if new businesses go in on the
west end, additional lighting could be added. Hasvebecause of the rail road tracks
and the canal, Mr. Lumpkin stated that there ismoath room for new businesses. Mr.
Lumpkin stated that he did not see how optionsarte/o were good options.

Mr. Lumpkin made a motion to approve option threethe west end of Route 66 Street
Lighting options. Mr. Witcher stated that perhéps Lodgers’ Tax board could provide
a sign directing motorists into town. A secondhe motion was slow in coming, and
Mr. Lumpkin rescinded his motion. Mr. Lumpkin thenade a motion to table the issue
and Mr. Apodaca seconded the motion. Roll Call:

Curnutt Witcher Lumpkin Apodaca Sandoval
Yes No No Yes Yes

Mr. Cherry offered that a public hearing could leéddhin order to obtain the input of
citizens and the business owners on the west etieedfoulevard. Mr. Apodaca stated
that he did not second Mr. Lumpkin’s original matioecause he feels the business
owners need to be on board with the decision. Witcher suggested that a public
hearing could be held before the next regular Casimn meeting at 5pm. Mr. Apodaca
agreed to this as a viable option. Mr. Witchergasgged that notice of the hearing should
be included in the utility bills.

Mr. Lumpkin asked where the funding for the wirelanaterials will come from if an
option including replacement of those componengp@oved. Mr. Cherry responded
that is unknown at this time. Mr. Curnutt askechiMie cost of option three will be.
Mr. Cherry responded that Xcel Energy will bear ¢bst of the light heads and any
wiring used in option three. Mr. Lumpkin addedtteammer travel season is fast
approaching and he would like to see the projestpteted soon. Additionally, Mr.
Lumpkin stated that lighting the street should hatpact new business to Tucumcari.



Mr. Leo Thrasher represented Main Street and ptedeéhe Engineering Proposal for
Main Street Road Improvements. Mr. Thrasher erpldithat the Commissioners were
provided the engineers proposal in their pack®ts. Thrasher said that the project will
start at Main and Second Streets where the enttartbe Rail Road Depot lies. Mr.
Thrasher added that the State Cultural Affairs @ffiis studying the viability of having
the National Rail Road Museum in Tucumcari. Mrra3her stated that the water lines
were replaced in January and the next step isnovede the area. Mr. Thrasher
explained that this proposal is piggy backing an@ities current Second Street project
which affords considerable savings.

Mr. Thrasher added that sidewalks will be replaséti colored and stamped concrete.
The sidewalks will also include trees with metaltgs and electrical outlets. The project
also includes new pavement to the old Rail Roadhwdeeand speed bumps. The total
cost is $402,709 which saves about 50% by piggkibgavith the Second Street project.
Mr. Thrasher added that the funds need to be exguebd July 2011. Mr. Thrasher
stated that he is working with the Department @nBportation and the expenditures
have already been approved and they are workihgte the funds released. Mr.
Thrasher added that the Depot roof has to be regland the parking lot needs to be re-
designed. Mr. Thrasher also stated that he is mwgnkith Union Pacific Rail Road to
move their equipment yard away from the depot. Nrasher further stated that the
Main Street Board and the Steering Committee betbmmend this proposal be
accepted.

Mayor Witcher asked if the roof and the parkingv@tre included in the proposal. Mr.
Thrasher responded that those elements were riotattin the proposal.

Mayor Pro Tem Apodaca made a motion to apprové&tiggneering Proposal for Main
Street Road Improvements and Commissioner Curaattraled the motion. Roll Call:

Witcher Lumpkin Apodaca Sandoval Curnutt
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

City Managers Report

Ms. Rose called upon Marty Garcia, Finance Diretdagive the monthly Financial
Report. Mr. Garcia reported that Gross Receigsdawn 2.83% from the three year
average. Mr. Garcia reported that constructiorips are down but he anticipates that
they will increase due to the many projects araiomeh. Mr. Garcia reported that retail
is up 20% which is a strong, good sign. Mr. Gastéed that he is keeping a close eye
on Gross Receipts Tax as it is the lifeblood fer general fund.

Mr. Witcher commented that in the months of Jan@eny February the weather was bad
which could be the reason construction fell off &marism was slow.

Mr. Garcia added that a copy of the DFA quarteglyart was included in the
Commissioners packets. Mr. Garcia directed the iBmsioners attention to the recap
page which he stated is the same as the DFA buegett which consolidates the budget
to two or three pages.



Regarding the cash balance, Mr. Garcia statedatfew funds are in the red as he is
waiting for the DFA to approve the budget amendmesolution that was recently
submitted.

Mr. Garcia noted that the General Fund is down l@Dwhen compared to this time
last year but at this time last year the SmallgSithssistance Grant had already been
received and it has not yet been received this year

Mr. Garcia added that 30% of the budget funds remath 25% of the fiscal year
remaining which is a good sign. Mr. Garcia repor@rk on the budget for the next
fiscal year continues as does work on eliminativgaudit findings. Mr. Garcia
concluded by saying that caution has to be exet@sehe State reports that the sky is
falling.

Ms. Rose then began her report to the Commissiaxphaining the latest developments
regarding the contract for the purchase of re-ustembetween the City and Mr. Jack
Smith, owner of Liberty Farms. Mr. Apodaca stateat he felt the discussion was
inappropriate as it did not appear on the agemis.. Rose stated that it was part of her
manager’s report.

Ms. Rose went on to discuss the budget scheduletinét Commission. Ms. Rose
explained that each Department Head submitted @opeal budget and Mr. Garcia has
used those to prepare a preliminary budget. Eagaiment Head will be meeting with
Mr. Garcia and Ms. Rose on April 26 and 27 to dsscthe preliminary budget. On April
30, the Management Team will meet to finalize thddet that will be recommended to
the Commission. On May 6, a budget workshop vélhleld at 9 am with the
Commission and the Department Heads which will iooiet on May 11 if the time is
needed. The final budget will be approved at tls I3 Commission Meeting.

Mayor Witcher asked that the budget process inclhdegossibility of a special election
to propose the re-allocation of Municipal Gross &pts Tax funds question to the
voters.

Ms. Rose directed the Commissioners to the two nsanwuded in their materials from
the Local Government Division. The memos deal Wwitkdget issues and the state of the
economy.

Ms. Rose then reported that the City of Tucumeathe first entity to pull water out of
Ute Lake and is selling it to Twelve Shores GolfilCht $125 per acre foot with a $25
reservation fee and required operations and mantencosts. Ms. Rose stated that this
is a great accomplishment and that Senator Hardlil&vin Logan on May 12 to visit
Twelve Shores and hear the Counties push to pame Manyon Road. Ms. Rose plans
to attend and to fully support the project.

Ms. Rose informed the Commission that there wilabaandatory pre-bid meeting for
the first cell at the landfill on April 28 at 10 am

Ms. Rose then clarified an item from her daily diaupplied to the Commissioners at the
previous meeting. Mr. Apodaca was approachedlbgad business expressing concern



that children were requesting use of the restrawite the business. The business
owner asked if the City would consider placing aglae restroom in the area. Mr.
Apodaca was not proposing this idea, simply pasaiogg the concern of the business
owner. Ms. Rose stated that she does not feeistfesisible at this time.

Ms. Rose then informed the Commission that shestaffl met with Jane Lucero, Airport
Development Administrator who advised that theairwvill be losing $150,000 in May.
The funds are received annually and can accumfdatiiree years in order to complete
major projects. The City hired an engineer to ttgvéarger projects, however we failed
to get a project completed this year. Ms. Luceaatesl that it is not favorable to revert
funds. There are two options, the City can reftertds to the federal government or can
allow another airport in the state to have the fundls. Rose stated that the Santa Fe
airport can use the funds. Mr. Witcher asked & @ommission needs to vote on this
reversion. Ms. Rose stated that the City Attorpaly has to sign in order to give the
funds to the Santa Fe Airport.

Ms. Rose stated that the City will advertise an RéPa new airport engineering firm,

will hold further meetings with Ms. Lucero and wabply for state grant funding to

obtain a bat wing mower. Ms. Lucero told Ms. Ris& Tucumcari has the best small
airport manager in the state and that our airgoatjewel known across the country.

Ms. Rose informed the Commission that there wilbbmeeting for those involved with
the community garden on Friday, April 23 at 9 anthatNRCS office. Ms. Rose and Mr.
Sandoval will be in attendance. Ms. Rose statatttie City provided the water for the
garden last summer at a cost of $450. Ms. Rosedsthat she will look for other ways
to pay for the water but would like to providefibther funds are not available.

Ms. Rose also reported that she will meet with aimal volunteer group on Friday,
April 23 at 11 am. A memorandum of understandiegarding the roles of the city and
the volunteer groups will be discussed.

Ms. Rose informed the Commission that a bid opemnvag held for the re-roof of the
Convention Center. No bids were received. Ms.eRstmited local contractors were
contacted to no avail. Ms. Rose said that theeptoill be re-bid and if no one
responds, a price will be negotiated with someméha procurement code allows after
two bid attempts.

Mr. Powers announced that the City was awardeduth&500,000 CDBG Grant which
requires a $50,000 local match. The funds wilubed to replace water lines and street
on Third. The project was highly rated and awarndeithe first round.

Ms. Rose reported that the Mayor signed the Letfeintent and the Request for
Obligation of Funds for the $1,178,375 USDA graot the Waste Water Treatment
Plant. This grant can only be expended when dtieDA funds are expended. Ms.
Rose said that the request to use the funds foD#te Street project has been rejected.
The Date Street project will be funded with railisfunds in the amount of $254,000.
Ms. Rose stated that the contingency on the waatervireatment project is low so the
City has asked that the administration building reenoved from the plan, saving
$150,000 in construction costs that can be usedaflity repairs. Mr. Powers has



investigated the possibility of an alternate enesgyrce for the project. Mr. Powers has
visited with Richard Rose at the NMED who is vengerested in the possibility of
alternative energy as New Mexico needs the greetdiitst The reconstructed wastewater
plant is expected to increase energy costs by $§@00month which has Ms. Vick
looking for additional grants for energy costs &mdenergy saving projects.

Ms. Rose went on to explain that the Waste WatantPproject is an approximately
$9,000,000 project with most of the funds cominghie form of reimbursable grant. A
copy of a cancelled check is required by NMED fambursement. Ms. Rose is working
on this as it will put the City in a significantstaflow problem.

Ms. Rose added that the City contributed to the mdtae that was working to get a
racino in Tucumcari. Ms. Rose stated that $323fe6tains in the fund which is held by
the Village of San Jon. Current news articles reploat Raton may not meet their
deadline to open a casino. Ms. Rose mentionedtthifie Governor in her meeting
today. The Governor stated that he realizes Riatamtrouble and that Tucumcari is in
line for the last racing license if Raton cannotemiheir obligations. Ms. Rose stated
that she wishes no ill on Raton, but wanted to knbwucumcari could still be
considered.

Ms. Rose reported that a new phone system hasdvdered for City Hall and should be
installed by June 1. Also, the library internetue should be handled in three to four
weeks.

Items From Commissioners

Mayor Witcher asked each Commissioner if they had@mments.
Commissioner Sandoval stated that he was gladawothat the library internet problem
is going to be fixed.

Commissioner Curnutt thanked all those in attenddaccoming to the meeting.

Mayor Pro Tem Apodaca stated that he was recentlyn@eeting for the Eastern Area
Workforce Development Board in Santa Fe and Tucunnegds to recommend
someone from the public sector to the board. Miodeaca stated that this needs to
happen as the spot has been vacant for some time.

Mr. Apodaca apologized for interrupting Ms. Rosegport but stated that he believed if a
vote was needed on an issue, the public needsitddremed that the Commission will be
considering the issue.

Commissioner Lumpkin thanked those in attendancedming to the meeting. Mr.
Lumpkin stated that the City has received $11 oiillin grants and complimented the
staff on this. Mr. Lumpkin also congratulated staf their efforts which resulted in all
local contractors completing the work on the SecBtrdet project.

Mayor Witcher thanked those in attendance for cgnaind stated that the City has the
finest staff of any City and stated that the staHppreciated.



Executive Session

Commissioner Lumpkin made a motion for the Comrois$o convene in closed
Executive Session to discuss matters as providedanider New Mexico Statutes
pertaining to open meetings referencing sectiod3-:0-H(2), limited personnel matters,
specifically the City Managers Annual Review. Thetion was seconded by
Commissioner Curnutt. Time noted was 7:06 pm.| Rall:

Apodaca Sandoval Curnutt Witcher Lumpkin
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Commissioner Lumpkin made a motion for the Comrois$o re-convene in Open
Session after meeting in Closed Executive Sessigmavided for under New Mexico
Statutes pertaining to open meetings referenciogosel0-15-1 H(2), limited personnel
matters, where the only matters discussed wer€itggManagers Annual Review. The
motion was seconded by Commissioner Curnutt. Toted was 7:20 pm. Roll Call:

Sandoval Curnutt Witcher Lumpkin Apodaca
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Adjournment

Mayor Pro Tem Apodaca made a motion to adjourn@oimissioner Lumpkin
seconded the motion. Time noted 7:22 pm. Roll:Cal

Curnutt Witcher Lumpkin Apodaca Sandoval
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

James L. Witcher, Sr., Mayor

ATTEST:

Christine Dougherty, City Clerk



